
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Sustainable Development Select Committee 
Agenda 

 
Monday, 4 March 2019 
7.00 pm  
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact: Timothy Andrew (timothy.andrew@lewisham.gov.uk) 
 
This meeting is an open meeting and all items on the agenda may be audio recorded 
and/or filmed. 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2019 

 
3 - 12 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

13 - 16 

3.   Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
There are none. 
 

 

4.   Planning: annual monitoring report 
 

 

5.   Local Plan update: New Cross area framework and station 
opportunity study 
 

17 - 38 

6.   Fire safety in tall buildings 
To follow. 
 

 

7.   Select Committee work programme 
 

39 - 60 

8.   Items to be referred to Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Sustainable Development Select Committee 
Members 

 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held 
on Monday, 4 March 2019.  
 
Janet Senior, Acting Chief Executive 

Thursday, 21 February 2019 
 
  

Councillor Liam Curran (Chair)  

Councillor Patrick Codd (Vice-Chair)  

Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye  

Councillor Suzannah Clarke  

Councillor Mark Ingleby  

Councillor Louise Krupski  

Councillor Alan Smith  

Councillor James-J Walsh  

Councillor Bill Brown (ex-Officio)  

Councillor Juliet Campbell (ex-Officio)  

  

   



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 30 January 2019 at 7.00 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors Liam Curran (Chair), Patrick Codd (Vice-Chair), 
Obajimi Adefiranye, Mark Ingleby, Louise Krupski, Alan Smith and James-J Walsh 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillor Suzannah Clarke 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Coral Howard, Councillor Brenda Dacres (Cabinet Member 
for Parks, Neighbourhoods and Transport (job share)), Timothy Andrew (Scrutiny 
Manager), Claudette Forbes (Regeneration Advisor), Nick Harvey (Transport Planner), 
Tony Piggott (Development Advisor), David Syme (Strategic Planning Manager) and 
Alison Taylor (Project Manager, Capital Programme Delivery) 
 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2018 

 
1.1 The Committee discussed the minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 

2018, the following key points were noted: 

 Officers had committed to considering the implementation of 2 hour 
controlled parking zones when reviews of parking zones were carried out. 

 
1.2 Resolved: that a note be added to the minutes highlighting that Members 

were keen to see the implementation of two hour controlled parking zones, 
wherever feasible. Subject to the amendment, Members agreed that the 
minutes of the meeting were an accurate record. 

 
2. Declarations of interest 

 
Councillor James-J Walsh declared a personal interests as: a resident of Catford; 
as the founder of Bakerlooextension.com and as an employee of London South 
Bank University’s student union. 
Councillor Mark Ingleby declared a non-prejudicial interest as a director of 
Lewisham Homes. 
 

3. Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
 
3.1 The Committee discussed the response from Mayor and Cabinet to its 

referral on the Local Plan and David Syme (Strategic Planning Manager) 
responded to questions, the following key points were noted: 

 That Members would welcome further opportunities for engagement. 

 A consultation and engagement strategy was being prepared. Officers 
were planning further all member briefings. 

 
3.2 Resolved: that the response from Mayor and Cabinet be noted. 
 

4. Local Implementation Plan 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 
 
 

2 

The agenda was changed. This item was considered after the Catford update. 
 
4.1 Nick Harvey (Transport Planner) introduced the report, the following key 

points were noted: 

 The Local Implementation Plan (LIP) and transport strategy had been in 
development for a number of months. Consultation had been carried out 
(which included consultation with the select committee). The final report 
was due to be considered by Mayor and Cabinet on 6 February. 

 The Committee’s previous comments on air quality had been incorporated 
into the revised LIP. 

 Officers had considered the Committee’s comments on the air quality 
targets but considered that it would be preferable to retain achievable 
targets (based on those proposed by TfL) with the ambition to do better 
rather than to include stretching targets that might not all be reached. 

 The Committee’s comments on cycling provision on the south circular 
would be addressed in the upcoming revision of the cycling strategy. 

 There had been 280 responses to the consultation, which had been 
broadly positive. 

 
4.2 Nick Harvey responded to questions from the Committee, the following key 

points were noted: 

 Four Healthy Neighbourhood schemes along with one (TfL funded) 
Liveable Neighbourhood scheme (of 18) would be funded in the first two 
years of the LIP. 

 It should be possible (dependent on the individual requirements of the 
proposed schemes) to deliver a further four in the third year of the LIP. 

 A rigorous, data driven approach had been taken to prioritising healthy 
neighbourhood schemes. The immediate availability of funding from other 
sources had been taken into consideration in choosing some schemes. 

 Consideration had been given to the distribution of funding between the 
north and the south of the borough. The south circular provided a dividing 
line for the north and south of the borough, due this being the boundary of 
the proposed extended ultra low emission zone planned to come into 
force in October 2021. The Mayor of London also proposed that the ultra-
low emission zone would finish at the south circular. In future years, two 
healthy neighbourhoods would be chosen from each side of the south 
circular. 

 A future change in the London Mayoralty would have an impact on the 
delivery of the LIP. However, it was unlikely that a future Mayor’s priorities 
would be radically different from the existing priorities. 

 
4.3 In Committee discussions the following key points were also noted: 

 The Committee welcomed the report and commended officers for their 
work. 

 Members were concerned that there should be an equal distribution of 
funding and projects between the north and the south of the borough. 
However, there was a difference of opinion amongst the Committee about 
the perceived and actual levels of funding for projects in the north and the 
south of the borough. 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

3 

 Some members were concerned that distributing LIP funding too widely 
(especially given the significant reductions in funding over time) would 
result in reduced levels of impact. 

 The Committee noted that evidenced pre-existing levels of community 
support could be beneficial in the prioritisation of future healthy 
neighbourhood schemes. 

 
4.4 Resolved: that the report be noted. That officers should provide a written 

update about funding and projects taking place in Downham ward for 
Councillor Howard; that information be circulated to all councillors about 
small sums of funding available for footway improvements; that the ‘easy 
read’ version of the LIP be circulated to Councillors. 

 
5. Catford Town Centre regeneration 

 
The agenda was changed to consider this item first. 
 
5.1 Tony Piggott (Development Advisor) provided a verbal update on the 

masterplanning process for Catford. The following key points were noted: 

 A workshop for all Councillors would be held on 13 February. 

 The workshop would be divided into two parts, the first would set out the 
context and the architects, engineers and urban designers would present 
the emerging framework for the Catford masterplan. In the second part 
there would be a discussion. 

 The Catford programme team intended that the workshop would be the 
first of a number of opportunities for the engagement of councillors in the 
development of the Catford masterplan. 

 The programme team and other relevant Council officers were working 
with Transport for London (TfL) to progress the plans for the realignment 
of the A205. 

 Proposals for the realignment would be presented at the workshop on 13 
February. 

 Public consultation on the realignment was currently planned for October 
2019. 

 
5.2 Tony Piggott responded to questions from the Committee, the following key 

points were noted: 

 The timetable for the programme had slipped. At the workshop on 13 
February, officers would set out the amended timetable for the 
masterplan, as well as opportunities for ‘quick wins’. 

 The programme team welcomed input from the Committee and from 
Councillors in general. 

 There were a number of elements (including plans for housing and public 
space as well as the cultural offer and the civic strategy) that needed to 
be combined in order to make the development a success. There would 
be a number of future opportunities for members to be involved. 

 
5.3 In Committee discussions, the following key points were also noted: 

Page 5



 

 
 
 

4 

 The Committee welcomed opportunities for consultation with all 
councillors but the Committee would continue to scrutinise the 
development of the programme at every meeting. 

 The Committee would welcome the presentation of different options for 
the regeneration at the workshop on 13 February. Members asked that 
this include options for different housing densities and tenures. 

 Further information should be made available about the ‘red line’ 
demarcating the masterplanning area. 

 Presentation of the ‘civic strategy’ for the regeneration would also be 
welcomed. 

 At the workshop, information should be provided which indicated the 
anticipated scope and scale of the redevelopment. 

 
5.4 Resolved: that the Committee formally record the following comments for the 

programme team- 

 The Committee notes previous research and information from 
government, which shows that high density housing does not need to be 
high rise. Officers should revisit this work. 

 The Committee would welcome the development and presentation of 
options for the regeneration which include plans with and without the 
Bakerloo line extension. It believes that this work is essential to ‘future 
proof’ proposals for the town centre. 

 The Committee believes that the proposals for the redevelopment should 
include the best, most beautiful and highest quality of design. 

 The Committee will continue to closely scrutinise the development of the 
programme. 

 The Committee asks that plans for the redevelopment give due 
consideration to other development proposals in the borough, including 
(but not limited to) the plans for the A21 cycle route as well as other key 
transport links and the redevelopment of Lewisham town centre. It is 
concerned that there will be areas in between developments that do not 
receive sufficient attention. 

 The Committee would welcome the development of a civic strategy for the 
borough, which sets out the form and function of the Council in the town 
centre, as well as other civic organisations in the community sector and 
education. 

 The Committee recommends that consideration be given to the timing 
and implementation of other strategies and plans, including those 
belonging to the Council as well as other public sector partners (such as 
TfL). 

 The Committee notes the importance of economic development in the 
local area. It believes that the redevelopment should retain and enhance 
local businesses and employment in order to ensure that local spending 
benefits the local area. 

 
 

6. Local Plan update 
 
6.1 David Syme (Strategic Planning Manager) introduced the report, the 

following key points were noted: 

Page 6



 

 
 
 

5 

 The update provided further details about the development of the 
evidence base for the new Local Plan. 

 Most elements of the evidence base were at a final draft stage of 
preparation. The character study was in final draft form. 

 The Study was an update of the 2010 character study. It incorporated an 
update of the technical data – including the physical characteristics of the 
borough as well as data about Lewisham’s population. 

 It outlined information about Lewisham’s different places, in order to 
inform the ‘place based’ approach to growth. 

 The Study included a proposed framework for growth for each of the 
areas identified. 

 The Study would inform the spatial plan for the borough. 

 There had been a delay in the programme for the development of the new 
Local Plan due to: the uncertainty at the Greater London Authority about 
the draft London Plan; the additional requirements for the development 
and improvement of the evidence base for the new Plan – and - the high 
level of interest in the new plan from councillors, which required additional 
time for consultation. 

 
6.2 David Syme responded to questions from the Committee, the following key 

points were noted: 

 The Study was ready for consultation. The opportunity was now for 
councillors to make their views known. 

 The open space study for the evidence base quantified the amount of 
space in the borough and also included a qualitative assessment of 
Lewisham’s open spaces. 

 An update would be provided for the anticipated completion dates of 
documents for the evidence base. 

 Planning officers were working collaboratively on the development of the 
new Local Plan. This included officers in development management. 

 Officers met regularly with amenity societies and community groups. 
Groups had been involved in the development of the characterisation 
study and heritage groups were involved in the development of the 
heritage study. Officers would welcome more involvement from 
community groups. 

 It had been difficult to engage with community groups in the south of the 
borough. 

 Officers would welcome a meeting with councillors from the wards in the 
south of the borough. 

 
6.3 In the Committee’s discussions the following key points were also noted: 

 The Committee welcomed the report and commended officers for its 
quality. 

 Some of the pictures in the characterisation study needed to be relabelled 
because they crossed the boundary of Hither Green and Lewisham. 

 
6.4 Resolved: that the report be noted. That dates would be provided for the 

completion of documents for the evidence base. That a map would be 
provided which demonstrated the overlay of the ‘places’ identified in the 
characterisation study with Lewisham’s existing ward boundaries. 

Page 7



 

 
 
 

6 

 
7. Bakerloo line extension update 

 
7.1 Claudette Forbes (Regeneration Advisor) introduced the report, the following 

key points were noted: 

 The extension was ‘not a done deal’. Part of the work being carried out 
was to raise awareness of the scheme and ensure that local support for it 
was well demonstrated. 

 TfL was carrying out detailed work on options for construction works sites, 
station locations Following this, further consultation was planned for the 
summer.  

 
7.2 Claudette Forbes and David Syme responded to questions from the 

Committee, the following key points were noted: 

 Officers had prepared an analysis of the benefits of the extension, which 
would be shared with the Committee. 

 The extension was closely linked with the proposed upgrade of the 
Bakerloo line. The combination of both would bring maximum benefits. 

 There were nine ‘opportunity areas’ (locations identified by the Mayor of 
London for housing and development) along the Bakerloo line, the growth 
objectives of which would be facilitated by an upgraded and extended 
line. 

 The extension would enable the development of thousands of homes 
along the whole length of the line for a fraction of the cost of the proposals 
for Crossrail 2. 

 Officers had been in contact with Councils in the north and west of 
London to emphasise the wider benefits of the extension and to gain 
support. 

 Officers were considering all the options for lobbying and gaining support 
for the extension. 

 There was provision for London Mayoral community infrastructure levy 
(CIL to be allocated towards other schemes. The delays on Crossrail 1 
and the pressure on the Mayoral budget might be an opportunity for the 
Bakerloo Line Extension. The extension would provide significant benefits 
and make use of underutilised infrastructure for a fraction of the cost of 
Crossrail 2 – which was why lobbying and raising the profile of the 
Bakerloo line extension and its benefits to London as a whole was so 
important. 

 Some work had been carried out on other options for funding the 
extension, including analysis of the increase in land values that would 
result from the improvements in infrastructure. 

 The Council was preparing a New Cross Area Framework, which included 
a detailed investigation into the Hatchem Works (location of Sainsbury’s) 
and Goodwood Road sites as potential station locations. TfL had 
indicated that the Sainsbury’s in New Cross would be able to remain open 
during the construction of the proposed new station in the area. 

 There was increasing commitment from Network Rail to work with TfL to 
ensure that there was a consistent and collaborative approach to 
improving Lewisham station and its surroundings. 

Page 8



 

 
 
 

7 

 Officers were working together to ensure the safeguarding of land to 
enable the extension. 

 
7.3 In the Committee’s discussions the following key points were also noted: 

 The Committee strongly welcomed the report and commended the 
approach being taken. 

 Members welcomed the energy and enthusiasm for the scheme 
demonstrated by officers. 

 The Committee wholeheartedly endorsed proposals to continue the 
extension beyond Lewisham onwards (including the options for the 
extension to Hayes). 

 The extension would maximise the benefits of the Catford regeneration. 

 Almost everyone was positive about the extension, apart from the London 
Borough of Bromley, which had been historically opposed. 

 Members highlighted the different options available for lobbying- 
(including engaging with politicians, civic groups and voters in the London 
Borough of Bromley). 

 Officers should engage with other statutory and public bodies (including 
higher education institutions) to encourage support the scheme. 

 
7.4 Resolved: that the report be noted. That a briefing on the Bakerloo line 

extension be shared with all members. 
 

8. Beckenham Place Park 
 
8.1 Alison Taylor (Project Manager) introduced the report, the following key 

points were noted: 

 The redevelopment of the park was making good progress. The works 
would be completed in May (2019). 

 The improvements to the park were based on five themes: community; 
heritage; outdoor activity; habitat and relaxation & play. 

 More and more volunteers were becoming involved in projects in the park 
(including the community garden, woodland management and education 
initiatives) 

 Further information would be provided in the park about its heritage. A 
number of the historic features of buildings in the park had been 
uncovered and were being preserved. 

 It was Lewisham’s largest park – which made it a good location for 
running and cycling. It would also offer outdoor swimming. 

 Work was taking place to preserve and improve the natural habitats in the 
park. 

 There had been improved usage of the park from a wider demographic of 
local people, including families. 

 The intention was still to renovate the mansion house in the park. It was 
currently occupied by meanwhile users. 

 The Foxgrove required substantial investment to bring it back into use. 
Some discussions had taken place with potential occupiers but nothing 
had yet been agreed. 

 The Environment Agency had removed funding from the flood alleviation 
project that was proposed for the eastern side of the park. Options were 

Page 9



 

 
 
 

8 

being considered for the future development and funding in the eastern 
end of the park. 

 
8.2 Alison Taylor responded to questions from the Committee, the following key 

points were noted: 

 Plans were progressing for filling the lake and testing water quality to 
enable swimming. 

 There was a business plan for the park. A business development 
manager would be appointed to support future opportunities in the park. 

 Funding generated in the park would be used to maintain the park. Any 
surplus would return to the overall Lewisham parks budget. 

 The new car park would be larger than the existing car park but there 
would still be pressure on space. 

 Officers’ focus was currently on delivering the project taking place in the 
park. Once the project had been delivered additional attention could be 
given to securing funding for the eastern side of the park. 

 Further attention would be given to branding for the park (this would 
include a new website) and communicating its facilities to the community. 

 
8.3 In the Committee’s discussions the following key points were also noted: 

 Members expressed concern about delays to the renovation of the 
mansion house and the Foxgrove. 

 There were mixed opinions about the plans for the eastern end of the 
park. Members noted that the Environment Agency were known for 
delivering projects that prioritised function over form and amenity. 

 The Committee highlighted its concerns about flooding in Catford town 
centre (and its surroundings), given the cancellation of the alleviation 
scheme. 

 
8.4 Resolved: that the report be noted. 
 

9. Information item: waste and recycling services update 
 
9.1 Resolved: that the report be noted. 
 

10. Select Committee work programme 
 
10.1 The Committee discussed the work programme for the next meeting. 
 
10.2 Resolved: 

 That items on fire safety in tall buildings; planning; the New Cross gate 
area study; home energy conservation; and the local plan would be 
considered at the meeting on 4 March 2019. It was also agreed that a 
written report on Catford would be received at the meeting but that it 
would not be discussed unless there had been significant progress on 
the regeneration programme. 

 
11. Items to be referred to Mayor and Cabinet 

 
11.1 There were none. 

Page 10



 

 
 
 

9 

 
 
The meeting ended at 10.00 pm 
 
 
Chair:  
 ---------------------------------------------------- 
 
Date: 
 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Sustainable Development Select Committee 

Title Declaration of interests 

Contributor Chief Executive Item 2 

Class Part 1 (open) 4 March 2018 

 
Declaration of interests 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 
 
1. Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct: 
 
(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2) Other registerable interests 
(3) Non-registerable interests 

 
2. Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 
gain 

 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d) Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e) Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f) Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)  Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
 

(a) that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough;  

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



(b) and either 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
3.  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the 
following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you 

were appointed or nominated by the Council 
(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 

purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public 
opinion or policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £25 

 
4. Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely 
to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more 
than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is 
not required to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a 
matter concerning the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

  
5.  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any 
event before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded in 
the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and withdraw 
from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest 
which has not already been entered in the Register of Members’ 
Interests, or participation where such an interest exists, is liable to 
prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event before 
the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, participate in 

Page 14



consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph (c) below 
applies. 

 
(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 

disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would affect 
those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to the 
declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a registerable 
interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the 
advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
6. Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not 
be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and 
advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

 
7. Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. 
These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter 

relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 
(b) School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent 

or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless 
the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which 
you are a governor;  

(c) Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d) Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e) Ceremonial honours for members 
(f) Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Sustainable Development Select Committee 

 

Title New Cross Area Framework and Station Opportunity Study Item No 5 

Contributor Mathieu Proctor – Principal Urban Design Officer  

Class Part 1 (open) 4 March 2019 

 

1. Purpose 

 

1.1. This report provides a summary of the New Cross Area Framework and 

Station Opportunity Study (NXAF + SOS) from inception to the final draft 

document being presented to SDSC.  

 

2. Recommendation 

 

2.1. The Select Committee is invited to note the findings of the NXAF + SOS, and 

comment on the final draft of the NXAF + SOS. Following this the NXAF + 

SOS will be reported to Mayor and Cabinet for approval, and if approved, will 

form part of the evidence base for the emerging LB Lewisham Local Plan.  

 

3. What is the New Cross Area Framework and Station Opportunity Study?  

 

3.1 The purposes of the NXAF + SOS:   

 Part of the evidence base for the emerging LB Lewisham Local 

Plan 

 Helps to justify investment in the Bakerloo Line Extension (BLE) in 

terms of new jobs, homes and public realm for New Cross Gate, as 

well as showing how existing character can be protected and 

supported  

 Inform funding bids for transport and regeneration initiatives  

 Support a TfL study into potential improvements to the A2 corridor  

 Set a trajectory for new development to inform discussions with 

developers and designers, helping to retain the character of New 

Cross into the future  

 Inform more detailed work by TfL on the design of a new BLE 

station at New Cross Gate in the future. 

 

  

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 

3.2 The NXAF + SOS consists of:   

 An Area Framework for an area of approximately 1km radius 

around New Cross Gate station. This identifies the existing 

character of the area, establishes a vision for its future 

development, and illustrates opportunities for growth within a 

network of new and improved connections  

 

 A more detailed Station Opportunity Study for New Cross Gate 

Station and its surrounds that considers how a new Bakerloo line 

station might benefit New Cross Gate in the future, depicts 

opportunities for related public realm improvements, explores how 

adjacent development can be directed to take advantage of the 

opportunity that the BLE represents in the short/medium/long term, 

and identifies areas for intervention by statutory agencies like LB 

Lewisham, TfL and the GLA. The Station Opportunity Study will 

have the potential to inform future work on the detailed design of a 

new BLE station in the future.  

 

 An Implementation Plan that details individual projects, sites and 

interventions contained within the study, and identifies potential 

timeframes, partners, and funding opportunities.  

 

3.3 The objectives of the NXAF + SOS:  

 Raising local awareness, generating enthusiasm and momentum, and 

meaningfully informing the development of NXAF + SOS with the public, 

stakeholders, businesses and landowners through public consultation  

 

 The articulation of a future vision for the New Cross area in the short, 

medium and long term which can inform the development of LB 

Lewisham’s new Local Plan, with the aim of strengthening the role of 

New Cross as a district centre 

 

 Using masterplanning to promote the creation of high quality places, 

spaces and buildings – including a New Cross Gate BLE station - 

prioritise the human-scale, and protect historic assets into the future. 

This approach provides clarity for landowners, developers, investors, 

operators, the Council and other public sector agencies as to the 

appropriate scale, location, mix and form of development in New Cross 

 

 

 Demonstrate through a place-based approach how New Cross can 

contribute to the Lewisham/Catford/New Cross Opportunity Area and LB 

Page 18



 

Lewisham’s objectively assessed housing need, unlocking new 

development opportunities 

 

 Develop a good understanding of the New Cross economy - including 

the retail, industrial, creative, educational, and evening economy sectors 

- with a view to identifying spatial networks and clusters, skills gaps, 

growth sectors, operational requirements, and opportunities for support 

and expansion 

 

 Develop a good understanding of New Cross society, including its history 

and evolution. Opportunities to collaborate with researchers at 

Goldsmiths University of London in achieving this objective to be 

identified and realised 

 

 Establish the appropriateness and sensitivities of developing “tall” 

buildings within the NXAF + SOS study area using established LB 

Lewisham methodology 

 

 Identify opportunities for transport improvements, to encourage people 

to make more journeys on foot, by bicycle and on public transport, and 

for addressing the severance caused by the A2 and existing rail 

infrastructure 

 

 Generate a range of promotional material and images designed to raise 

awareness of the development and investment potential of New Cross 

at a local, sub-regional and national level.  

 

3.4 The NXAF + SOS was joint funded by TFL, the GLA and the London Borough 

of Lewisham. This involved expenditure of £50,000 from the Council match 

funded from TFL (£50,000) and the GLA (£50,000).The total contract value 

was £150,000. Following an open tender process utilising the GLA’s 

Architecture Design and Urbanism Panel (ADUP) Framework, a consultant 

team was appointed in October 2017. The consultant team was led by 

architecture practice 5th Studio, supported by We Made That, Alan Baxter 

Associates, and Lambert Smith Hampton.     

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 19



 

4.0 Why the NXAF + SOS Is Required:   

 

4.1 Transport for London (TfL) is consulting on Phase 1 of the proposed Bakerloo 

Line Extension (BLE) to extend the Bakerloo line beyond Elephant & Castle to 

Lewisham, serving Old Kent Road and New Cross Gate. The consultation 

considers site options where new stations could be constructed and the 

location of intermediate shafts and associated buildings which are required on 

sections of the line between stations to provide ventilation and access to the 

running tunnels. Construction of Phase 1 is scheduled to commence in 2023, 

with works completed by 2028/29.  The Council made an initial holding 

response to the TfL consultation in April 2017, and wishes to investigate 

elements of the proposal further before making a fuller response.  

 

4.2 In Lewisham, the consultation includes new interchanges at New Cross Gate 

and Lewisham stations. These will provide access to the Bakerloo Line, 

London Overground, Train services, DLR, and local bus routes across South 

East London. The proposed interchanges will provide new connections 

between central London, the major centre at Lewisham, and the district centre 

at New Cross. There is also the potential to extend the network to the major 

centre at Catford and Lower Sydenham in a Phase 2 of the BLE.    

 

4.3 The Council is extremely supportive of the BLE to Lewisham via Old Kent 

Road and New Cross Gate as outlined in the Council’s consultation response 

to TfL’s consultation on the BLE conducted between 9 February and 21 April 

2017. The reason for the support is because it would provide new transport 

capacity and more frequent connections. The BLE will unlock development 

close to new Bakerloo line stations. The BLE will support Lewisham’s 

productivity by providing homes for people within easy reach of central 

London, and by better connecting the business and higher education 

community. For residents it will mean much improved access to the central 

London employment market and a wider sales market for LB Lewisham’s 

existing businesses. . 

 

4.4 The arrival of the Bakerloo Line Extension and the associated possibilities for 

growth will be an important element of the spatial strategy contained within 

the Council’s emerging new Local Plan (the development plan documents 

adopted under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004) which sets 

out a vision and a framework for the future development of the borough. The 

new Local Plan is currently at the initial stages of development, with a draft 

issues and options report scheduled for consultation in summer 2018, with 

adoption scheduled for 2020. As such the Council will be working to 

understand the implications of the BLE in partnership with existing local 

communities, delivery partners and statutory consultees including the Greater 

Page 20



 

London Authority (GLA), LB Greenwich, LB Southwark, and local amenity 

societies.   

 

4.5 Lewisham’s new Local Plan will build on the existing growth strategy 

contained within the Core Strategy 2011, which identifies a growth corridor 

extending from New Cross and Deptford to Catford, as well as planning for 

the BLE and the possibilities for growth and development in both Phase 1 and 

2.  It is notable that Lewisham’s new Local Plan proposes a strengthened 

focus on Lewisham’s places, to ensure that development is positively 

managed with communities over the long-term for the benefit of all. The new 

Local Plan will provide an opportunity to revisit the strategic approach to 

place-making locally, and to build upon the local distinctiveness of 

Lewisham’s places. Through proactive consultation with local communities, 

the local plan process will enable communities to help shape the future of 

their borough.  

 
4.6 The NXAF + SOS will provide support and evidence for the new Lewisham 

Local Plan’s place-making approach. The NXAF + SOS will also assist TfL as 

it explores the implications of the BLE for New Cross and New Cross Gate. 

 

4.7 In order to pass independent examination local plans are required to meet 

prescribed ‘tests of soundness’ as set out in the NPPF. This includes that they 

must be ‘justified’ by evidence. The process of plan making therefore involves 

a significant amount of information gathering at the front end of the process. 

This information is then used to set policy options and preferred approaches 

for the plan going forward. Accordingly, much of the work on the Local Plan 

to-date has focussed on the preparation of the council’s technical evidence 

base. This includes in-house research along with the commissioning of 

specialist studies, most of which have now been published online, completed 

in draft format or are in preparation. The NXAF + SOS will form part of this 

evidence base along with other Area Frameworks. These will help to identify 

opportunities for area regeneration and improvements, and be given effect 

through the new Local Plan.  

 

4.8 All Lewisham Local Plan evidence base documents – including the NXAF + 

SOS - will be made publicly available as appropriate (accessible on the 

council’s planning webpages) as they are finalised. The evidence base will be 

published alongside the submission Local Plan and be subject to scrutiny 

through the independent examination process. 

  

5.0 Key Recommendations of the NXAF + SOS:  

 

5.1 The key recommendations of the NXAF + SOS can be found in the NXAF + 

SOS Executive Summary in Appendix A of this report.  

Page 21



 

 

5.2 In summary the NXAF + SOS:   

 Defines the existing character of New Cross through an extensive 

study of the area  

 Presents an overarching vision for the future of New Cross that retains 

this character, and establishes a set of guiding principles to achieve 

this vision  

 Defines a series of Spatial and Economic Strategies – ‘big ideas’ to 

promote and guide change in New Cross in accordance with the vision  

 Identifies and illustrates a variety of projects, large and small, with the 

potential to cumulatively achieve the ‘big ideas’ and realise the vision 

for the study area over time  

 

5.3 The vision and guiding principles have been organised thematically, and 

acknowledge responses from public consultation Stages 1 and 2. These will 

not constitute statutory planning policy, but will help the Council in guiding 

change in the study area:   

  

A Lively Place  
New Cross Road will be a lively multi-functional high street serving the local 

area and visitors alike, having secured and expanded its diverse cultural 

activity, leisure and entertainment offer. 

 

A Creative Place  
New Cross and Deptford will be established as one of London’s principal 

creative quarters, building on the presence of Goldsmiths, other key cultural 

institutions nearby, and the existing cluster of creative industries and 

businesses that support them. 

 

Distinctive Local Places  
The particular qualities of two distinctive areas will be strengthened through 

positive reinvention – New Cross Road where it operates as a High Street, 

and the areas around the rail ‘tangle’ to the north, including Folkestone 

Gardens, and the route of the former Surrey Canal. Both places will be 

transformed through improvements focused on building on local character and 

identity. 

 

An Equitable Place  
New Cross will be a place that continues to support and nurture existing 

residents and businesses while also being open to new ideas, residents and 

businesses – so that it can continue to evolve and grow for the benefit of all. 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

A Connected Place  
A network of excellent local connections and wider routes will be created 

leading to and around New Cross. This network will be accessible to all, 

creating an environment that encourages walking, cycling and public transport 

- which means that they are the natural choice for moving around the city for 

short-medium distance journeys most people, most of the time, while also 

accommodating and managing the impact of essential vehicular traffic. 

 

5.4 The Station Opportunity Study for New Cross Station and its surrounds 

includes consideration of how a Bakerloo Line Station at New Cross Gate can 

complement the vision for New Cross. It includes an exploration of the optimal 

capacity and nature of development around the station, with a view to 

informing the new Lewisham Local Plan and potentially future development 

briefs. Opportunities to significantly improve the quality of the public realm and 

the environment of New Cross Road are also identified.  

 

5.5 The Station Opportunity Study proposes the following principles, these will not 
constitute statutory planning policy, but will help the Council in setting out the 
opportunities for relevant sites: 

 

 
High Density Mixed Use Development  

 Provide a mix of uses on the site, with 20% non-residential uses, 10% 
sui generis and 70% residential. Provide new homes with 50% 
affordable (in accordance with LB Lewisham definitions and policy)  

 Access into this deep site (Hatcham Works) should be fronted on both 
sides by active, non-residential ground floor uses.  

 
Enhance the High Street  

 Support the function of the existing High Street condition along New 
Cross Road, with a mix of uses.  

 New buildings shall sensitively reinforce the High Street, bridging the 
current gap in the high street, extending it to the west.  

 Create active building frontages on the street, along with the entrance 
to the station.  

 Tall buildings should be located set back from New Cross road and 
Hatcham conservation area, along LBL Route one.  

 
Create a Connected Piece of City  

 Lewisham Route One to continue across the site, with new bridge over 
the railway tracks with access ramps integrated into the streetscape. 

 Explore potential of servicing from Hatcham Park Road.  

 New connection through to Robert Lowe Close allowing connectivity at 

the north end of the site.  

Page 23



 

 New junction on New Cross Road to be designed to accommodate 

improved bus interchange, cycle facilities and pedestrian crossings 

outside the station. 

 

6.0 Public Consultation 

 

6.1 Public consultation has been an integral part of the NXAF + SOS project, and 
has been organised around a number of key stages. This public consultation 
has been designed to accord with the requirements for statutory documents 
specified in the LB Lewisham Statement of Community Involvement 2011.  

 
6.2 The public consultation programme has combined workshops, site visits, 

public drop-in events, presentations, exhibitions, library notices, and online 
consultations.  More detailed information on the material presented and 
responses received through this process can be found in Chapter 7.2 of the 
NXAF + SOS.  

 
 
 6.3 The programme of public consultation was as follows:  

 
Stage 1: November- December 2017:  

 Three walking workshops with local stakeholder groups and LB 

Lewisham members in New Cross and Deptford    

 1-2-1 stakeholder meetings with key organisations  

 

Stage 2: 4 December 2017 - 14 January 2018:  

 Two public engagement drop-in events took place in New Cross 

Learning and The Albany to present emerging findings from the 

baseline study, alongside a draft future vision and principles for the 

future of the NXAF + SOS study area  

 Five week online consultation via LB Lewisham website     

 

Stage 3: 28 February 2018 - 26 March 2018:  

 Consultation events for the spatial strategies contained within the draft 

New Cross Gate Area Framework including a two public drop-in 

sessions, a community stakeholder workshop, and a two week 

exhibition within the Richard Hoggart Building at Goldsmith’s College 

 Presentation to New Cross Area Forum 6 March 2018 

 Presentation to Lewisham Pensioners Forum 21 March 2018 

 Public presentation at New Cross Learning with TfL 26 March 2018  

 Five week online consultation via LB Lewisham website     

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

Stage 4 – 12 October 2018 – 14 December 2018:  

 Draft NXAF + SOS uploaded to LB Lewisham website 

 Copies of draft NXAF + SOS document made available at Deptford 

Lounge, New Cross Learning, Pepys Resource Centre, and Catford 

Library  

 Online consultation via Citizenspace on LB Lewisham website  

 Presentation to New Cross Area Forum 6th November 2018 

 Window display at New Cross Learning November-December 2018 

 

 

7. Next Steps  

 Subject to approval from Mayor and Cabinet, having regard to any 

feedback from SDSC, the NXAF + SOS will be formally approved.  

 The NXAF + SOS will set a trajectory for change in the study area, 

assisting Officers and other stakeholders by setting out the Council’s 

high-level aspirations for new development in the area in terms of its 

massing, layout, and potential function.  

 Officers may use this document to inform planning decisions as a 

material consideration. Other stakeholders – including the public and 

development industry – will use this document when considering 

proposals in the study area.  

 Members are minded to note that it is the intention that the NXAF + 

SOS will not comprise part of the council’s statutory development plan 

and therefore not carry weight as a Development Plan Document 

(DPD) or Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). However it may 

be a material consideration for planning decisions. It is expected that 

the key principles and recommendations of the NXAF + SOS will be 

given effect in Lewisham’s new Local Plan and, subject to its adoption, 

will be granted full material planning weight at that time. Further 

questions should be directed to officers. 

 

 

8. Financial implications  

 

a. At this stage there are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

 

9. Legal implications  

 

Under paragraph 6.6 of the Council’s Constitution, part of the specific terms of 

reference of SDSC is to comment and consult on and make recommendations 

to the Mayor and Cabinet in relation to the following: 

(i) sustainable development, economic development, business 

support, employment and training; 

Page 25



 

(ii) the formulation of the Council’s planning policies, (including the 

preparation of the Council’s Local Development Documents and 

other local plans for the use and development of land, but 

excluding planning control and building control functions); 

 

Therefore, this report and its recommendation falls squarely within SDSC’s 

remit. 

 

As stated in paragraph 7 of this report, the NXAF + SOS, may be a material 

planning consideration but its weight will be limited when coming to consider 

planning applications.  

 

10. Crime and disorder implications 

 

a. There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 

 

11. Equalities implications  

 

a. Lewisham's Comprehensive Equalities Scheme (CES) 2016-20 describes the 

Council's commitment to equality for citizens, service users and employees. 

The CES is underpinned by a set of high level strategic objectives which 

incorporate the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector 

Equality Duty: 

 

 Tackle victimisation, harassment and discrimination 

 To improve access to services 

 To close the gap in outcomes for citizens 

 To increase understanding and mutual respect between communities 

 To increase participation and engagement 

 

12. Conclusion  

 

11.1 The Committee is asked to:  

 Note the content of this report summarising the New Cross Area 

Framework and Station Opportunity Study 

 Note the changes made to the draft NXAF + SOS document as a result of 

the 12 October 2018 – 14 December 2018 period of public consultation 

 

11.2  If you have any questions about this report please contact Mathieu Proctor, 

Principal Urban Design Officer mathieu.proctor@lewisham.gov.uk  

Page 26

mailto:mathieu.proctor@lewisham.gov.uk


5 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

NEW CROSS 
AREA FRAMEWORK
September 2018

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

P
age 27



6 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

Lewisham

CANARY 
WHARF

GREENWICH

CITY OF 
LONDON

Embankment

Waterloo

Elephant & Castle

Old Kent Road 2

Old Kent Road 1

New Cross 
Gate

Future Potential 
Extensions to the 
Bakerloo Line to 
Bromley

New Cross Road/ A2

1 KM

  THE THAMES 

 BAKERLOO LINE

CAMBERWELL NEW CROSS

PECKHAM

BERMONDSEY

ROTHERHITHE

DULWICH

London 
Bridge

Blackfriars Tower HillBank

Canada 
Water

SOUTHWARK

LAMBETH

LEWISHAM

NEW CROSS

LONDON’S CENTRAL 
ACTIVITIES ZONE

INTRODUCTION

New Cross is experiencing great change as part of 
significant developmental transformation in South 
London. This study - jointly commissioned by the 
London Borough of Lewisham, the Greater London 
Authority and Transport for London - aims to establish 
the key strategies to guide that change towards 
what the Mayor of London has termed ‘good growth’: 
transformation that acknowledges and works with the 
character of a particular place and its inhabitants and 
that is physically and socially diverse.

The extension of the Bakerloo line has the potential 
to radically alter New Cross as a place to live, 
work and study. It could have a dramatic impact on 
patterns of movement across the area, while also 
creating a catalyst for changes to the physical and 
social environment experienced at street level. 

This study establishes an evidence base that allows 
insight into the life of New Cross, its economy and 
built environment and how that can be reinforced and 
improved. The study will be used by LB Lewisham, 
the GLA and TfL as they work with local communities 
to plan for the future of New Cross through projects 
like the LB Lewisham Local Plan, the Mayor’s 
London Plan, and the design of new Bakerloo line 
infrastructure. We have taken cues from how the 
area has evolved and developed in the past and 
considered how that understanding can inform future 
change. For example with over 350 artist studios 
discovered within the study area, demonstrating 
the huge influence of Goldsmiths, University of 
London, New Cross is one of London’s most creative 
zones, which must be acknowledged in forthcoming 
development plans.  

The fundamental purpose of the study is to develop 
an aspirational and practical vision that maximises 
the benefit of infrastructure investment in terms of 
supporting Good Growth, through co-ordinating, 
negotiating and integrating the needs and desires of 
all those that have a stake in the future of New Cross.  
 

Bakerloo Line Extension

O
verground

Southern

NEW 
CROSS 
GATE 

To Highbury & 
Islington

To Greenwich

To Lewisham

To Waterloo
To London Bridge

To East Croydon To West Croydon & 
Crystal Palace

To the City

To Victoria
Bus routes

Above: New Cross is at the heart of major change in 
South London, focussed along the Old Kent Road - 
New Cross Road corridor....

... investment in the Overground and Bakerloo line 
will create a much more connected place. This study 
explores how this investment is optimised to reinforce 
the character of New Cross.

P
age 28



7 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

A strategy for locating tall buildings which aims 
to protect the character of New Cross Road and 
Deptford High Street whilst also allowing new 
tall buildings where appropriate to achieve the 
optimum density in highly accessible locations.

The Transport Strategy seeks to create a high 
quality local network of routes through New 
Cross, prioritising buses and enhancing the 
environment for pedestrians and cyclists.

This strategy seeks to create a permeable 
network of streets and routes that both connect 
to wider routes, and provide local linkages. 

WHAT IS THE ‘AREA FRAMEWORK’?
The ‘Area Framework is made up of three key 
sections; ‘Vision and Principles’, ‘Spatial Strategies’; 
and ‘Projects’. These are based on key findings from 
baseline research undertaken at the beginning of the 
study. 

Character areasBuilding Heights

Economic and Land Use Strategy

Transport Strategy

Places and change

Activation Strategy

Landscape Strategy

Public Realm Strategy
This strategy proposes ways to support existing 
activity and create new activity in New Cross in the 
short term. This includes opportunities to enable 
Goldsmiths and local organisations to collaborate 
and activate vacant and public spaces within and 
around the town centre

This strategy seeks to augment and develop 
a stronger sense of place where this is lacking 
or poor.  Two focii for active uses are identified 
relating to the strong ‘places’ of the High Street 
and the Viaduct.

This strategy focuses on how the creation of 
new places can positively influence and relate to 
existing places within the study area.  

The Landscape Strategy looks at opportunities to 
enhance existing open spaces and other environmental 
assets, as well as how to create high quality new public 
realm, routes and spaces.

NEW CROSS NEW CROSS DEPTFORD

D
E

P
TFO

R
D

A vision statement and a set of Guiding 
Principles for each of the following five themes 
relevant to New Cross...

VISION AND PRINCIPLES

... these can steer change across the study area - explained 
in a series of spatial strategies...

... a series of aggregate projects, which 
together create a picture of how New Cross 
can be transformed. These collectively form 
the  ‘Area Framework’

SPATIAL AND ECONOMIC 
STRATEGIES

PROJECTS

In response to the new policy guidance within the 
London Plan, the local economy and land use 
strategy aims to retain and intensify industrial 
uses within the Surrey Canal Road SIL sites.

A Lively Place

A Creative Place 

An Equitable Place 

A Connected Place 

Distinctive Local Places

Deptford Park

Folkstone 
Gardens

Sayes 
Court 
Park

Fordham Park

New 
Cross 
Gate 
cutting 
nature 
reserveTelegraph 

Hill

Bridgehouse 
Meadows

Eckington 
Gardens

Surrey Canal Road

Old Kent Road

Evelyn StreetIlderton R
oad

Queens Road

Edward Street

D
eptford H

igh S
treet

Lewisham
 W

ay

New 
Bermondsey

New Cross Road

Juno 
Way

Oxetalls Road

Hatcham 
Works 

Besson 
Street

Amersham 
Vale

Goldsmiths

Giffin 
Street

2

Convoys 
Wharf

Achilles St.

Somerville

1

3

4

Blackhorse Rd.

5

W
oodpecker R

oad

6

South 
Bermondsey

Queens Road 
Peckham

Deptford

Convoys 
Wharf 
Pier

New 
Bermondsey

New 
Cross 
Gate

New 
Cross

P
age 29



8 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

VISION AND PRINCIPLES

A Lively Place 

New Cross Road will be a lively multi-
functional high street serving the local 
area and visitors alike, having secured 
and expanded its diverse cultural 
activity, leisure and entertainment 
offer. 

A Creative Place

New Cross and Deptford will be 
established as one of London’s 
principal creative quarters, building on 
the presence of Goldsmiths, other key 
cultural institutions nearby, and the 
existing cluster of creative industries 
and businesses that support them.

Distinctive Local Places

The particular qualities of two distinctive 
areas will be strengthened through 
positive reinvention – New Cross Road 
where it operates as a High Street, and 
the areas around the rail ‘tangle’ to the 
north, including Folkestone Gardens, 
and the route of the former Surrey 
Canal. Both places will be transformed 
through improvements focused on 
building on local character and identity.

An Equitable Place

New Cross will be a place that 
continues to support and nurture 
existing residents and businesses 
while also being open to new ideas, 
residents and businesses – so that it 
can continue to evolve and grow for the 
benefit of all.

A Connected Place

A network of excellent local connections 
and wider routes will be created leading 
to and around New Cross. This network 
will be accessible to all, creating an 
environment that encourages walking, 
cycling and public transport - which 
means that they are the natural 
choice for moving around the city for 
short-medium distance journeys most 
people, most of the time, while also 
accommodating and managing the 
impact of essential vehicular traffic.

These vision statements and guiding principles have 
been informed by the extensive baseline research 
and stakeholder consultation.  They set out an 
aspirational and viable future vision for New Cross, 
and describe how the area can evolve to secure the 
benefits from the Bakerloo Line Extension, whilst 
maintaining its character and unique assets.

P
age 30



9 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

Notes:

Homes
‘Allocated Sites’ methodology for large sites used to generate 
numbers of dwellings from the London Plan 2017 Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment.  The number of homes 
is not the net increase of homes as existing homes are not 
deducted.  Potential development sites are approximate and do 
not denote ownership boundaries.

Jobs
The numbers of jobs has been generated using the  London 
Employment Sites Database.  Sites included are: LB Lewisham 
mixed use employment sites, Surrey Canal Road and Hatcham 
Works and Goodwood road.  Additional jobs are likely to be 
generated on other sites with a mix of uses. 

c. 12,000 homes
+
c. 13,500 jobs

Deptford Park

Folkstone 
Gardens

Sayes 
Court 
Park

Fordham Park

New 
Cross 
Gate 
cutting 
nature 
reserve

Bridgehouse 
Meadows

Eckington 
Gardens

Surrey Canal Road

Old Kent Road

Evelyn StreetIlderton R
oad

Queens Road

Sanford Road

D
eptford H

igh S
treet

Lewisham
 W

ay

New Cross Road

W
oodpecker R

oad

The detailed understanding of the area gained 
from both our analysis and engagement work 
has identified many of the current strengths and 
weaknesses in the area including: local identity; 
landscape; development potential; connectivity and 
transport issues; and quality of the public realm.  

Local character should be celebrated and maintained, 
and we have endeavoured to achieve this in the 
future described in the Area Framework. 
The findings from the baseline study generated an 
strong evidence base, which informs an aspirational 
and viable future vision for New Cross Gate, including 
the creation of jobs and homes.

South 
Bermondsey

New 
Bermondsey

Queens Road 
Peckham

Deptford

Convoys 
Wharf Pier

New 
Cross 
Gate

New 
Cross

P
age 31



New Cross Rd

New Cross Road

W
oodpecker R

oad

To Old 
Kent 
Road

Quietway Q1

Thames Path

Lewisham Route 1

2

1
3

4
5

6

D
eptford H

igh Street

Evelyn Street

Surrey Canal Road

...supported by a network of excellent public realm and green space.Opportunities for new development and intensification, aggregate projects...

10 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

PROJECTS

1  Hatcham Works and 
Goodwood Road
2  New Cross Road
3  Amersham Vale
4  Surrey Canal Road
5  Folkstone Gardens
6  Woodpecker Road

This study identifies a number of opportunities for 
new development and intensification that collectively 
can help realise the strategic objectives, reinforcing 
New Cross as a distinctive and diverse part of 
London. Planned together these areas of change 
can realise outcomes greater than the sum of their 
individual parts and be supported by a network of 
excellent public realm connections which make it 
easier to move around the area, reconnecting New 
Cross to the river and enabling existing green spaces 
to work harder.

2

1
34

5

6

Convoys Wharf

Hatcham 
Works 

Achilles 
Street

New Cross

Goldsmiths

New 
Bermondsey

D
E

P
TFO

R
D

Surrey 
Canal Road

Folkstone 
Gardens

P
age 32



11 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

Opportunities for new development 
and intensification

This mapping illustrates the collective potential of 
areas of change in New Cross to realise the strategic 
objectives.

1 Hatcham Works  and Goodwood Road

Centred on New Cross Gate, these sites are at the centre 
of the focus for change and investment.  This vision is for a 
new high-density mixed-use development, capitalising on 
very good access to public transport. 

2 New Cross Road

The vision for New Cross Road, a thriving High Street, 
looks to protect and enhance existing uses.  Known 
development sites and areas of change are mapped as well 
as opportunities identified in the Area Framework. 

3 Amersham Vale

Amersham Vale is an important arm perpendicular to New 
Cross Road, supporting the function of the High Street with 
a mix of uses, including a heath centre and New Cross 
Station.

4  Surrey Canal Road

The opportunity here is to safeguard substantial SIL 
designation whilst exploring options for consolidation 
and  intensification supporting creative activity including 
affordable workspace. Promote and support creative 
uses within the northern employment areas by seeking 
opportunities for low cost/ low threshold workspaces for 
small businesses in vacant spaces.

5  Folkstone Gardens

Ensure new development complements Folkestone 
Gardens, with the positioning of active or positive ground 
floor frontage one way of increasing the vibrancy of this 
important local asset which lies at the intersection of a 
number of key routes. 

6  Woodpecker Road

Ensure new development has active or positive frontage 
adjacent to Folkestone Gardens to increase the vibrancy
of this local asset and improve the quality of the connections 
between New Cross Road and Folkestone Gardens.

Deptford Park

Folkstone 
Gardens

Sayes 
Court 
Park

Fordham Park

New 
Cross 
Gate 
cutting 
nature 
reserveTelegraph 

Hill

Bridgehouse 
Meadows

Eckington 
Gardens

Surrey Canal Road

Old Kent Road

Evelyn StreetIlderton R
oad

Queens Road

Edward Street

D
eptford H

igh S
treet

Lewisham
 W

ay

New 
Bermondsey

New Cross Road

Juno 
Way

Oxetalls Road

Hatcham 
Works 

Besson 
Street

Amersham 
Vale

Goldsmiths

Giffin 
Street

2

Convoys 
Wharf

Achilles St.

Somerville

1

3

4

Blackhorse Rd.

5

W
oodpecker R

oad

6

South 
Bermondsey

Queens Road 
Peckham

Deptford

Convoys 
Wharf Pier

New 
Bermondsey

New 
Cross 
Gate

New 
Cross

P
age 33



12 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

SCR- 
TR-05

New Cross Road

W
oodpecker R

oad

To Old 
Kent 
Road

Thames Path

Quietway Q1

Lewisham Route 1

Deptford Park

Folkstone 
Gardens

Sayes 
Court 
Park

Fordham Park

New 
Cross 
Gate 
cutting 
nature 
reserve

Bridgehouse 
Meadows

Eckington 
Gardens

Surrey Canal Road

Old Kent Road

Evelyn Street

Ilderton R
oad

Queens Road

Edward Street

D
eptford H

igh S
treet

Lewisham
 W

ay

WDA-
PR-03

WDA-
PR-10

WDA-
PR-01

WDA-
PR-02

NXR-
PR-06

South 
Bermondsey

New 
Bermondsey

Queens Road 
Peckham

Deptford

Convoys 
Wharf Pier

New 
Cross 
Gate

New 
Cross

Key

LB Lewisham Boundary

1km radius Area Framework Focus

Parks and Green Spaces

4

5

+

+
+

++ ++ +
+ +

+

A network of excellent connections 
and wider routes

...supported by excellent connectivity should address 
the isolation of key sites of the study area and improve 
the quality of the two key east-west routes: New Cross 
Road and Surrey Canal Road.

1 New Cross Road

This historic route into London has many competing demands 
upon it while accommodating large volumes of people.  
Streetscape and public realm improvements should prioritise 
pedestrians whilst allowing transport-focused improvements 
to reduce journey times for buses and to create excellent 
interchange between transport modes.

2 Hatcham Works  and Goodwood Road

Here a new street into this site - and a generous on-street 
interchange space at New Cross Station - will create better 
connections to the surrounding urban fabric and optimise 
development on the site

3 Amersham Vale

A number of connected public realm improvements along 
Amersham Vale and Pagnell Street can contribute to the 
success of Lewisham Route One - a pedestrian and cycle 
route which runs in parallel one block north of New Cross 
Road.

4  Surrey Canal Road

Better connect local neighbourhoods and employment
areas by creating healthier environments for pedestrians
and cyclists, whilst mitigating the impact of industrial
traffic. This includes the reconfiguration of Cold Blow
Lane to enhance the safety of pedestrians and cyclists.

5  Folkstone Gardens

Make Folkestone Gardens the centre of a series of 
connections that improve public space around the viaduct and 
Surrey Canal Road.

6  Woodpecker Road

Woodpecker Road -  between Fordham Park and Folkestone 
Gardens - is one of New Cross’ most important North/South 
Routes. Improvements include re-surfacing, removing empty 
planters and introducing more seating and better lighting.

2

1

3

6

P
age 34



13 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

2

4

5
7

4

5

9

8

1

3

6

7

Hatcham Works & Goodwood Road - 
The Station Opportunity Study

This chapter of the report, the Station Opportunity 
Study for New Cross Station and its surrounds 
includes consideration of how a Bakerloo Line 
Station at New Cross Gate can complement the 
vision and opportunity for New Cross.  It includes 
an exploration of the optimal capacity and nature 
of development around the station, with a view to 
informing future development briefs. Opportunities 
to significantly improve the quality of the public 
realm and the environment of New Cross Road are 
identified.

High Density Mixed Use Development

1 - Provide a mix of uses on the site, with 20% 
non-residential uses, 10% sui generis and 70% 
residential.  Provide new homes with 50% affordable 

2 - Access into this deep site should be fronted on 
both sides by active, non-residential ground floor 
uses.

+
Enhance the High Street

3 - Support the function of the existing High Street 
condition along New Cross Road, with a mix of uses.

4 - New buildings shall sensitively reinforce the High 
Street, bridging the current gap in the high street, 
extending it to the west.

5 - Create active building frontages on the street, 
along with the entrance to the station.

6 -  Tall buildings should be located set back from 
New Cross road and Hatcham conservation area, 
along LBL Route one.

+
Create a Connected Piece of City

7 - Lewisham Route One to continue across the site, 
with new bridge over the railway tracks with access 
ramps integrated into the streetscape. Explore 
potential of servicing from Hatcham Park Road. 

8 - New connection through to Robert Lowe Close 
allowing connectivity at the north end of the site.

9 - New junction on New Cross Road to be designed 
to accommodate improved bus interchange, cycle 
facilities and pedestrian crossings outside the station.

P
age 35



14 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

Ensure that the development of key sites 
such as Hatcham Works have good public 
realm connectivity, resolve the potential 
conflict between servicing and access and 
seek to extend the High Street westward 
towards Old Kent Road

New Cross Road will become a place that thrives on 
its city-scaled connectivity by developing a transport 
interchange with easy and intuitive connections 
between rail, bus and tube services, and that is easily 
accessed from the surrounding areas on foot and by 
bicycle.

Accommodate future 
growth and improve 
the pedestrian 
environment through 
widened footways 
and improved 
crossings

Ensure seamless interchange 
between public transport modes 
and generosity for a growing 
population using the space of 
the  High Street

Reinforce the Healthy 
Streets objectives, 
encouraging active 
transport: for example 
by completing Lewisham 
Route 1 as a walking and 
cycling connection that 
relieves pressure on the 
High Street

Ensure a diverse mix that 
supports and promotes the 
economic life of the High Street 
and spaces off it. Create space 
for different scales of retail 
and workspace by avoiding 
residential uses on ground floor

Create a single station building 
for New Cross Gate for both 
overground and underground rail 
services.

P
age 36



15 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

4 Improvements along Surrey Canal Road maintain the use of this road for 
servicing and heavy vehicles whilst enhancing the environment for pedestrians 
and cyclists with better crossings at side roads, mitigation measures against air 
pollution, and the addition of clear and characterful wayfinding to contribute to 
local identity and increase sustainability of the area by attracting new businesses.

5 Make Folkestone Gardens the centre of a series of connections that 
improve public space around the viaduct and Surrey Canal Road.

6 Public realm improvements upgrade Woodpecker Road to create 
a pedestrian ‘street’ as an extension of the footpath/cycleway through 
Fordham Park.

The study identifies key new areas of 
upgraded public realm, the potential of 
which is illustrated here.

2

1
34

5

6

Hatcham 
Works 

Achilles 
Street

New Cross

Goldsmiths

New 
Bermondsey

D
E

P
TFO

R
D

Surrey 
Canal Road

Folkstone 
Gardens

P
age 37



16 New Cross Gate Area Framework, Draft for Consultation, September 2018 5th Studio, We Made That, Alan Baxter

NEXT STEPS
It is our aspiration that the vision, principles, and proposals 
contained in the New Cross Gate Area Framework and 
Station Opportunity Study will be implemented in a number 
of ways over the short to medium term. 

2018
long term

In the short term, it is the Council’s intention to 
seek Council approval of the New Cross Gate Area 
Framework and Station Opportunity Study as a 
material consideration. This will lend the vision and 
development principles it contains some limited 
weight when planning decisions are made on sites 
within the study area.  

In early 2019 LB Lewisham will issue the ‘Preferred 
Approach to the Local Plan’ (Regulation 18) document 
for public consultation. This document will contain 
the Council’s initial thinking on the new growth and 
development strategy for LB Lewisham, and will be 
integrate the analysis and ideas contained within the 
New Cross Gate Area Framework as part of its evidence 
base. This initial thinking will become more detailed as 
the Local Plan is developed, with final adoption, including 
policies which govern development proposals and forecast 
infrastructure requirements, anticipated in late 2020. 

2019

The New Cross Gate Area Framework and Station 
Opportunity Study will also form part of the evidence 
base and business case for future funding bids made by 
LB Lewisham’s Economic Development team. It is the 
Council’s aspiration to secure Creative Enterprise Zone 
status for New Cross and Deptford from the Mayor of 
London, with the employment study and related principles 
having already played a part in securing Round 1 funding 
for this endeavour in 2018. 

The New Cross Gate Area Framework and Station 
Opportunity Study will also form an integral part of a number 
of projects under development by Transport for London 
(TfL). Feasibility work on the Bakerloo Line Extension as a 
whole is progressing, with this study playing an important 
role in assessing options for a new station interchange and 
associated development at New Cross Gate. TfL hope to 
finalise this work by 2019, with a Transport & Works Act 
Order (equivalent to a planning permission) submitted in 
2021, enabling construction on the Bakerloo Line Extension 
to Lewisham via Old Kent Road and New Cross Gate to start 
in 2023.

In addition, TfL will incorporate the analysis and tactics the 
New Cross Gate Area Framework and Station Opportunity 
Study proposes for New Cross Road in a major project 
aimed at improving environmental quality along the A2 
Corridor. TfL hope to secure funding for the delivery of this 
project during 2018-19, and will use the New Cross Gate 
Area Framework and Station Opportunity Study as part of 
their business case. A similar process will be adopted by 
LB Lewisham as they bid for for Liveable Neighbourhoods 
funding from TfL for new and improved pedestrian and cycle 
connections across the north of the borough in New Cross 
and Deptford. 

The New Cross Gate Area 
Framework employment study and 
related principles have already 
played a part in LB Lewisham’s 2018 
Creative Enterprise Zone bid.

P
age 38



 

 

Sustainable Development Select Committee 

Title Select Committee work programme 

Contributor Scrutiny Manager Item 7 

Class Part 1 (open) 4 March 2019 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1 To advise the Committee about the process for agreeing the 2019-20 work 

programme. 
 

2. Summary 
 

2.1 At the beginning of the municipal year each select committee is required to draw 
up a work programme for submission to the Overview and Scrutiny Business 
Panel. The Panel considers the suggested work programmes and coordinates 
activities between select committees in order to maximise the use of scrutiny 
resources and avoid duplication. 

 
2.2 The meeting on 4 March 2019 is the last scheduled meeting of the Sustainable 

Development Select Committee in the 2018-19 municipal year. This report 
provides a summary of the issues considered in 2018-19 (the completed work 
programme) and asks the Committee to put forward suggestions for the 2019-20 
work programme. 

 
3. Recommendations 

 
3.1 The Select Committee is asked to: 

 consider the Committee’s terms of reference appendix A alongside the 
scrutiny work programme prioritisation process when adding items to the 
programme for 2019/20; 

 note the completed work programme attached at appendix B; 

 review the issues covered in 2018-19 municipal year; 

 consider any matters arising that it may wish to suggest for future scrutiny, 
including topics for in-depth review; 

 take note of the key decision plan attached at appendix C and consider which 
decisions will require further scrutiny. 

 
4. Sustainable Development Select Committee 2018-2019 
 
4.1 The Committee had six meetings in the 2018-19 municipal year. The completed 

work programme is attached at appendix B. Key issues considered were:  

 The Catford programme; 

 Development of Lewisham’s new Local Plan; 

 Parking and parking policy 

 The new Local Implementation Plan and Transport Strategy 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 

 

5. Planning for 2019-20 
 

5.1 Eight meetings will be scheduled for the 2019-20 municipal year. A work 
programme report will be put forward at the first meeting of the year for members 
to review, prioritise, revise and agree. The report will take account of the 
Committee’s previous work and may incorporate: 

 issues arising as a result of previous scrutiny 

 issues that the Committee is required to consider by virtue of its terms of 
reference 

 items requiring follow up from Committee reviews and recommendations 

 issues suggested by members of the public 

 standard reviews of policy implementation or performance, which is based on a 
regular schedule 

 suggestions from officers 

 decisions due to be made by Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Issues arising from the 2018-19 work programme 
 

5.2 The Committee has already indicated that there are matters it feels should be 
considered for further scrutiny (this includes issues carried over from the 2018-19 
work programme) these are: 

 Ongoing development and delivery of Council planning policy, including the 
development of the new Local Plan and its evidence base; 

 Implementation of the air quality management plan; 

 Delivery of the Catford regeneration programme; 

 Economic development and partnerships; 

 Home energy conservation; 

 Flood risk management. 
 

Sustainable Development Select Committee terms of reference 
 

5.3 The Committee’s terms of reference are included at appendix A. These are 
formalised in the Council’s constitution. 

 
5.4 The Committee has the responsibility for scrutinising Lewisham’s approach to 

sustainable development, economic and business development, employment and 
training, highways, parking, traffic and transport, and urban regeneration. The 
Committee also considers issues relating to public health and the environment - 
when it relates to issues such as waste disposal and environmental health. The 
Committee also has a remit to explore issues relating to street and market trading, 
as well as public protection, refuse collection and disposal, street cleaning, 
consumer protection, cemeteries and crematoria and flood risk management. 

 
5.5 The Committee scrutinises the formulation of the Council’s planning policies- 

including the preparation of the Council’s Local Development Framework and other 
local plans for the use and development of land. 

 
  

Page 40



 

 

Items requiring follow up from Committee reviews and recommendations 
 

5.6 Over the course of the year, the Committee made recommendations to Mayor and 
Cabinet on: 

 Neighbourhood CIL 

 Parking 

 The development of the Local Plan 

 Air quality 
 The budget cut proposals 

 
5.7 Given the significance of these issues, the Committee may decide to consider 

them again in 2019-20. 
 

Standard reviews of policy implementation or performance, which are based on a 
regular schedule 

 
5.8 In previous years, the Committee has considered the annual parking report; the 

planning service annual monitoring report and the implementation of the waste and 
recycling strategy on a regular basis. 

 
Suggestions from officers 

 
5.9 Transport: at its meeting on 30 January 2019 the Committee received an update 

on the Council’s work to support the extension of the Bakerloo line. Feasibility 
studies and technical work being carried out by Transport for London is being 
supported by Council officers. There is also a proactive campaign underway to 
build support for the extension. The Committee might want to review progress 
during the coming year. 

 
5.10 The cuts programme: the Council has already made cuts from its annual revenue 

budget of £163m since 2010. The Medium Term Financial Strategy was reported 
to the Public Accounts Select Committee as well as Mayor and Cabinet in July 
2018. This set out that an estimated £30m of cuts is required by 2020/21. To date 
saving proposals for £9.3m have been presented for scrutiny and agreed by Mayor 
and Cabinet for 2019/20, leaving a budget gap of £7.5m to be funded from 
reserves. 

 
5.11 All scrutiny committees will need to allocate time to the scrutiny of further cuts 

proposals in the coming year. It should also be noted that a significant proportion 
of proposals this year related to income generating schemes. This included 
proposals for events in parks (including Beckenham Place Park). The Committee 
might decide to review the implementation of these proposals. 
 

5.12 In deciding on items to add to the work programme for 2019/20, the Committee 
should give consideration to the work programme prioritisation process, which is 
based on best practice: 

Page 41



 

 

 
 

Decisions due to be made by Mayor and Cabinet 
 

5.13 The notice of key decisions is attached at appendix E. 
 

6. Financial implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. There will be financial implications arising from 
items on the agenda; these will need to be considered, as necessary. 

 
7. Legal implications 

 
7.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must 

devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each 
municipal year. 

Page 42



 

 

8. Equalities implications 
 

8.1 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a public sector equality duty (the 
equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 
8.2 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 

the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

 
8.3 It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, 

victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote equality of opportunity or 
foster good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. It is a duty to have due regard to the need to achieve the goals 
listed at 8.2 above. 

 
The Comprehensive Equalities Scheme 

 
8.4 The Council’s comprehensive equalities scheme (2016-20) reconfirms Lewisham’s 

commitment to five enduring objectives: 

 tackling victimisation, discrimination and harassment 

 improving access to services 

 closing the gap in outcomes for all residents 

 increasing mutual understanding and respect within and between communities 

 increasing citizen participation and engagement 
 

8.5 There may be equalities implications arising from items on the work programme 
and all activities undertaken by the Select Committee will need to give due 
consideration to this. In particular, the Committee should note the Council’s 
planned approach to the delivery of its enduring objectives through the delivery of 
key strategies and plans. 

 
Background documents 

 
Lewisham Council’s Constitution: https://tinyurl.com/lblconstitution2019 

 
  

Page 43

https://tinyurl.com/lblconstitution2019


 

 

Appendix A 
 
Sustainable Development Select Committee terms of reference 
 
To exercise all the functions and roles of the overview and scrutiny committee in 
relation to the following matters: 
 

 to examine issues relating to the protection of the environment including ‘green’ 
issues such as the conservation of natural resources, energy efficiency and 
conservation and/or the reduction of all types of pollution and make 
recommendations to the Mayor and Cabinet as appropriate; 

 to comment and consult on and make recommendations to the Mayor and 
Cabinet in relation to the following: 

 
i.  sustainable development, economic development, business support, 

employment and training; 
 
ii.  the formulation of the Council’s planning policies, (including the preparation of 

the Council’s Local Development Framework and other local plans for the use 
and development of land, but excluding planning control and building control 
functions); 

 
iii.  highways, parking, traffic and transport, and urban regeneration; 
 
iv.  the environment including waste disposal, environmental health, street and 

market trading (but not the granting of licences and related matters); 
 
v.  public protection, refuse collection and disposal, street cleaning, consumer 

protection, cemeteries and crematoria; 
 
vi  generally to examine the performance of the Mayor and Cabinet in relation to 

these matters. 
 

 the review and scrutiny of the exercise by risk management authorities of flood 
risk management and coastal erosion risk management affecting the area. 

 

Page 44



 

 

Appendix B – the completed 2018/19 work programme 
 

 
 

Work Item Type of item Priority
Strategic 

priority

Delivery 

deadline
19-Jul 12-Sep 29-Oct 12-Dec 30-Jan 04-Mar

Budget cuts Performance monitoring High CP10 Ongoing Proposals

Election of the Chair and Vice-Chair Constitutional requirement High CP6 Jul

Select committee work programme 2018/19 Constitutional requirement High CP6 Ongoing

Catford Town Centre Regeneration In-depth review Medium CP6 Mar Masterplanners Masterplanners

Implementation of the air quality action plan Performance monitoring Low CP6 Jul

Lewisham Local Plan update Information item Medium CP6 Mar

Development of the local implementation plan Standard item High CP6 Oct

Pubs Single meeting review High CP6 Dec

Planning service annual monitoring report Information item Medium CP6 Dec

Community Infrastructure Levy neighbourhood CIL strategy Standard item High CP1/CP10 Dec

Bakerloo line extension update Information item Low CP6 Dec

Parking policy review Policy development High CP6 Dec

Annual parking report Performance monitoring Low CP6 Mar

Beckenham Place Park Performance monitoring High CP6 Jan

Waste strategy implementation and performance monitoring Information item High CP6 Jan

Fire safety in tall buildings Performance monitoring High CP6 Jan

Economy and partnerships Standard item Medium CP6 Mar

New Cross Area framework Standard item Medium CP6 Mar

Home energy conservation Standard item Low CP6 Mar

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 
 

 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 

   
 

Forward Plan March 2019 - June 2019 
 
 
This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.  
 
Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in 
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent to Kevin Flaherty, the Local Democracy Officer, at the Council 
Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 47



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

December 2018 
 

Annual Budget 2019-20 
 

06/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Lewisham Transport Strategy 
and Local Implementation Plan 
2019-2041 
 

06/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Parks, 
Neighbourhoods and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Income Generation Strategy 
 

06/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Social Value Policy 
 

06/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Council Budget Update 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

P
age 48



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

November 2018 
 

Determined Admission 
Arrangements 2019-20 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Financial Regulations and the 
Directorate Schemes of 
Delegation 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Demolition of Mayow Road 
Warehouse to build new 
Council Homes 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Corporate Strategy 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Adoption of Charter against 
Modern Slavery and Approval 
of 1st Annual Modern Slavery 
and Human Trafficking 
Statement 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Joani Reid, 
Cabinet Member for 
Safer Communities 
 

 
  

 

P
age 49



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

December 2018 
 

Public Health Neighbourhood 
Grants 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Jonathan 
Slater, Cabinet Member 
for Community Sector 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Prevention and Inclusion 
Contract Extensions 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Athena (Violence against 
women and girls service) 
contract extension 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Joani Reid, 
Cabinet Member for 
Safer Communities 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Award of a Printing Services 
Contract for the ICT Shared 
Service Authorities 
 

13/02/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Financial Regulations and the 
Directorate Schemes of 
Delegation 
 

27/02/19 
Council 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 Annual Budget 2019-20 27/02/19 David Austin, Head of   

P
age 50



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

  Council 
 

Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

  

November 2018 
 

Adoption of Charter against 
Modern Slavery and Approval 
of 1st Annual Modern Slavery 
and Human Trafficking 
Statement 
 

27/02/19 
Council 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Joani Reid, 
Cabinet Member for 
Safer Communities 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Corporate Strategy 
 

27/02/19 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Executive 
Director for Resources & 
Regeneration and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Lewisham Homes Articles 
Amendment - Governance 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Redevelopment of 
PLACE/Ladywell site 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

October 2018 
 

Public Health cuts revised 
proposals 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 

 
  

 

P
age 51



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Deputy Mayor 
 

October 2018 
 

Neighbourhood CIL Strategy 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Executive 
Director for Resources & 
Regeneration and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Waldron Health Centre S106 
Bid 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Longfield Crescent 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Parking Policy Update 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Parks, 
Neighbourhoods and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Beckenham Place Park update 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Parks, 
Neighbourhoods and 

 
  

 

P
age 52



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Transport (job share) 
 

December 2018 
 

Commissioning of Older Adults 
Day Services parts 1 and 2 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Commissioning of Extra Care 
Housing, Parts 1 and 2 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Learning Disability Framework 
- shortlisting approval 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Retendering of the 
Occupational Health and 
Employee Assistant 
Programme 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Pay Statement 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Powered two wheelers in bus 
lanes 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 

 
  

 P
age 53



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

  Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Parks, 
Neighbourhoods and 
Transport (job share) 
 

February 2019 
 

Arrangements to provide Home 
Care Services in 
Neighbourhood 1 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Catford Regeneration 
Partnership Limited 2019-20 
Business Plan 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Extension of Sexual Health 
Clinic Contract with LGT 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Lewisham and Greenwich 
Trust Site Acquisitions 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Residential Portfolio 
Acquisition 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 

 
  

 

P
age 54



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Housing 
 

February 2019 
 

New Homes Development 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Lewisham Homes Acquisitions 
Programme 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

May 2018 
 

Stillness School Kitchen and 
Dining Hall Contract 
 

19/03/19 
Executive Director 
for Children and 
Young People 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Heathside and Lethbridge 
Phases 5 & 6 Land Assembly. 
Part 1 & 2 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Local Democracy Review 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 

 
  

 

P
age 55



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

February 2019 
 

Boundary Commission Review 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Local Safeguarding 
Partnership - Future 
Arrangements 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Local Democracy Review 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Pay Statement 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Neighbourhood CIL Strategy 
 

03/04/19 
Council 

Janet Senior, Executive 
Director for Resources & 

 
  

 P
age 56



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 Regeneration and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

February 2019 
 

Catford Regeneration 
Partnership Limited 2019-20 
Business Plan 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Boundary Commission Review 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

New Woodlands School 
Remodelling works Contract 
Award 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Watergate Special School 
Expansion Contract Award 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 Proposals for private rented 24/04/19 Kevin Sheehan,   

P
age 57



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 sector licensing in Lewisham 
 

Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

  

February 2019 
 

Re-Procurement of Tier 4 
Substance Misuse framework 
Contract for adult substance 
misuse services 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

October 2018 
 

Chelwood Nursery Expansion 
 

07/05/19 
Executive Director 
for Resources and 
Regeneration 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

October 2018 
 

Rockbourne Community 
Centre Refurbishment 
 

07/05/19 
Executive Director 
for Resources and 
Regeneration 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Parks, 
Neighbourhoods and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Authorisation to consult on 
adoption of new Conservation 
Area Appraisal and Article 4 
Direction Deptford High Street 
Conservation Area 
 

08/05/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

August 2018 Lewisham Strategic Heat 05/06/19 Kevin Sheehan,   

P
age 58



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 Network Business Case 
 

Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

  

February 2019 
 

Adoption Lewisham Park 
Conservation Area, 
accompanying Article 4 
direction, and appraisal 
document 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

P
age 59



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

      

      

P
age 60


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2019
	2 Declarations of interest
	5 Local Plan update: New Cross area framework and station opportunity study
	05 Appendix 1 - New Cross area framework executive summary 040319

	7 Select Committee work programme
	07 Appendix C - Key decision plan 040319


